THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM SALUDA COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Letitia H. Verdin, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2014-001588

Carl Eugene Berry, Respondent,

v.

Jess T. Reichardt and Thomas H. Reichardt, Appellants.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

Philip H. Woolhiser
SC Bar No.: 12466
112 Trafalgar Street, SW
Aiken, South Carolina 29801
Phone: 803-648-9994
Attorney for Appellants

RECEIVED

DEC 10 2014

SC Court of Appeals

Other Counsel of Record:

Richard L. Whitt, Esquire

Jefferson D. Griffith, III, Esquire

Austin & Rogers, P.A.

508 Hampton Street, Suite 300

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Attorney for Respondent

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. DID THE COURT ERR IN HOLDING THAT THE APPELLANTS INTENTIONALLY TRESPASSED AT THE TIME THE TREES WERE CUT?
2. DID THE COURT ERR IN GIVING EVIDENTIAL MERIT TO RESPONDENT'S CLAIM OF "RECORD NOTICE"?
3. DID THE RESPONDENT PRESENT SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT HIS ACTUAL DAMAGE CLAIM FOR THE APPELLANTS' TREE CUTTING?
4. DID THE COURT ERR BY AWARDING ACTUAL DAMAGES OF \$4,193.90 TO THE RESPONDENT?
5. DID THE COURT ERR IN ITS CALCULATION OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES?

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

This case involves two appellants who purchased a parcel of land without the advantage of a full survey and title search. The Respondent in this case owns property adjacent to the land of one of the appellants. The Plaintiff/Respondent initiated this case to terminate certain acts of the Defendants/Appellants and to receive payment of his claims. Much of the Respondents' evidence is based upon a default judgment. The Defendants/Appellants have appealed the magnitude of the award of actual and punitive damages to the Plaintiff/Respondent; their defense rests upon the type of trespass involved and the application of statute and case law.

This case originated in the County of Saluda, in the Circuit Court for the 11th Judicial Circuit. The Summons and Complaint are dated May 13, 2013 and were served on that date. Plaintiff served an Application For a Rule to Vacate or Show Cause on May 29, 2013. The case received Civil Action No.: 2013-CP-41-91. The Application for a Rule was served on June 13, 2013.

The Defendants' Answer, Motions and Counterclaims were filed and served on June 11, 2013. Plaintiff's Reply was dated and served on June 24, 2013. Plaintiff's Amended Complaint was served June 26, 2013. July 2, 2013 in a Hearing before Judge Russo, the circumstance of the fence erected by Defendant, Jess Reichardt was the subject of testimony by the parties and agreement was reached for a Consent Order whereby the fence would be removed by Defendant, Jess Reichardt. The resulting Consent Order, dated August 12, 2013, was filed August 13, 2013.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS (Cont.)

On August 14, 2013 the Plaintiff filed a Notice of Motion, followed by an Affidavit of Default dated August 13, 2013 based upon lack of an answer to the Amended Complaint. The Defendants answered the first Amended Complaint by their Answer served on August 26, 2013. On August 26, 2013 the Plaintiff served his Notice of Motion and Motion to Compel replies to interrogatories and requests for production. The Defendants provided responses at a Lexington Hearing on September 4, 2013. On September 10, 2013 the Plaintiff moved for dismissal of Defendants' Counterclaims. The Default Order was confirmed and dated November 19, 2013. The Defendants served a Motion to Amend dated October 10, 2013. This Motion contained the testimony of Appellant, Jess Reichardt explaining his reasons for erection of the fence and the September 17, 2013 meeting of the expert surveyor, Mark Mills, with the Plaintiff and Defendants. On November 12, 2013 the Defendants presented their default set aside Motion before the Court in Saluda.

The Damages Hearing was held at the Saluda County Court House on June 16, 2014, the Honorable Letitia H. Verdin, Judge presiding.

The Order For Judgment was signed on June 18, 2014. The Appellants issued a Notice of Motion for Judgment Alteration on June 27, 2014. The Order Denying the Motion for Judgment Alteration, dated July 8, 2014, was filed on July 11, 2014. The Appellants' "Notice of Appeal" was dated July 18, 2014.

The Order For Judgment contains an award of \$4,194.00 to be paid to the Respondent for direct damages and an award of \$20,969.00 for punitive damages. The

Appellants request the case be remanded for a recalculation of direct damages and punitive damages.

Babb v. Lee County Landfill SC, LLC, 747 S.E.2d 468, (S.C. 2013)

ARGUMENT AS TO ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. DID THE COURT ERR IN HOLDING THAT THE APPELLANTS INTENTIONALLY TRESPASSED AT THE TIME THE TREES WERE CUT?

The Court in *Babb v. Lee County Landfill SC, LLC*, 747 S.E.2d 468, (S.C. 2013), stated: "While trespass may mean any unlawful act committed against the person or property of another," and in that sense is the mother of all common law tort liability, we use it here in the form in which it is now generally used to mean an action to recover for an unlawful entry by another onto one's real property. South Carolina Code contains several specific examples of an "unlawful entry. For example, South Carolina Code §16-11-640 addresses an enclosed place. South Carolina Code §16-11-580 addresses "Cutting, removing, or transporting forest products without consent of landowner", and in relevant part, requires knowledge and willful action for a trespass to be "unlawful". The applicable section of the Code reads as follows:

" South Carolina Code §16-11-580. Cutting, removing, or transporting forest products without consent of landowner;

(A) It is unlawful for a person to knowingly and willfully:

- (1) cut, destroy, or remove forest products without the consent of the landowner;
- (2) aid, hire, or counsel another person to cut, destroy, or remove forest products without the consent of the landowner;"

To be unlawful, the Appellants' entry upon land in the area of the cut trees must be "knowing and willful". As described in Issue 3. below, an experienced real estate attorney testified that by use of the 1934 plat of Respondent, she would not be able to verify the on-site boundary location. Similarly, the Appellants, lacking an accurate survey, could not know the "on-the-ground" actual boundary, and thus could not be accused of intentional trespass. Attorney Rauton testimony of "Record Notice" (*R. p. 35 Lines 4-23*) does not provide evidence that the Appellants' trespass was intentional, and the Appellants' estimate of the boundary location could have been based upon a tax map that differed from the 1934 Plat, (*R. p. 47 Lines 13-16*). *

In the full paragraph of page 2 of the Order of Judgment, the Court states: "After the meeting, which served to put the Defendants on actual notice of the boundary lines, the Defendants trespassed onto the Plaintiff's property and cut timber, in violation of South Carolina Code Subsection §16-11-580(A)(1) (Supp. 2013)." This statement is not consistent with the Respondent's testimony.

The Respondent testified that his meeting with the Appellants occurred after the trees were cut, (*R. p. 43 Lines 16-19*). The Transcript appears incomplete on page 20 (*R. p. 43*), line 17. However, the Court Recorder confirms her record correctly matches the testimony for this point.

The second full sentence on page 2 of the Order For Judgment states: "The Plaintiff testified that both Defendants intentionally trespassed onto his land on several occasions, apparently believing Defendant, Jess T. Reichardt owned close to 10 acres instead of the 1.8 acres he actually purchased." The transcript of the Damages Hearing does not contain this testimony that could apply to the tree cutting trespass. The Order

For Judgment does not clearly distinguish between the two trespass events of this case, i.e., the tree cutting and the fence erection. However, to properly measure damages, the Court should have considered the two trespass events separately.

The above statement of the Court demonstrates the Respondent's difficulty in defining an unlawful trespass. If the Appellants believed they owned a 10 acre parcel, the trespass was not intentional. The Respondent also testified that he had no fences in place to mark the boundary of his property, (*R. p. 66 Lines 7-15*). This is additional evidence that the Appellants lacked actual, in-field guidance of the boundary location.

The Respondent has not presented evidence that the Appellants should have known the boundary of their land. Therefore, the trespass that occurred when the trees were cut could not have been intentional. The Court's belief that the Appellants had a meeting with the Respondent, which placed the Appellants on notice prior to the cutting of the trees, is not supported by the testimony of the Respondent. Also, it should be noted that in the first sentence of the full paragraph on page 2 of the Order for Judgment, the Court stated: "After the first trespass, the parties met to discuss the property lines,". There is no evidence in the transcript to indicate the first trespass is anything other than the cutting of the trees. Therefore, at this time, the Court is agreeing that there was no meeting of the parties prior to the tree cutting. The Appellants had no actual notice of the boundary location at the time the trees were cut.

Therefore, the Court erred in holding that the tree cutting was an intentional trespass.

2. DID THE COURT ERR IN GIVING EVIDENTIAL MERIT TO RESPONDENT'S CLAIM OF "RECORD NOTICE"?

The Court, in the last sentence of page 2 of the Order For Judgment, stated: "The Defendants had actual, record notice of the boundary line." The use of the term "record notice" in a real estate transaction was discussed by the Court in Spence v. Spence, 628 S.E.2d 869, (S.C. 2006): "However, constructive or inquiry notice in the context of a real estate transaction often is grounded in an examination of the public record because it is the proper recording of documents asserting an interest or claim in real property which gives constructive notice to the world. In the current case, the recorded document providing notice is a 1934 Plat that states there is a boundary, but does not clearly identify the location of the boundary, (*R. p. 36 Line 18 - R. p. 39 Line 4*).

Attorney Rauton testified that she assisted Respondent after the trees were cut. (*R. p. 46 Lines 24-25*) Attorney Rauton testified as to the presence of a plat showing "record notice" of the disputed boundary, (*R. p. 39 Lines 17-19*). Attorney Rauton admitted that "record notice" of the boundary would not necessarily identify the location of the boundary depicted by a 1934 Plat, (*R. p. 39 Lines 9-25*). Attorney Rauton provided no evidence that the Appellants, could have known the on-site actual location of the boundary at the time of the single meeting between the Appellants and Respondent.

Attorney Rauton did not consider that the Saluda County Tax Maps would provide a different description of the boundary, (*R. p. 38 Lines 1-8*). At the Damages Hearing, the Respondent testified that the Appellants were using a tax map during the single boundary discussion among the Appellants and the Respondent. The discussion involving a tax map and a 1934 Plat illustrates that at that time, the Appellants had an

opinion on the boundary location that differed from that of the Respondent, (*R. p. 47 Lines 13-18*). Respondent's own testimony illustrates that he could not accurately describe the boundary, i.e., "the creek did not cross the creek", (*R. p. 47 Line 19*).

Attorney Rauton testified as to the presence of a plat showing "Record Notice" of the disputed boundary, (*R. p. 39 Lines 17-19*). "Record Notice" does not apply to the existence of an intentional action in the current case. In lines 3 through 5 at the top of Page 2 of the Order For Judgment, the Court agrees that Appellant, Jess T. Reichardt purchased his land without a title search or a survey; he did not intentionally ignore the record notice. Since the Appellants did not intentionally avoid all the information that a title search could provide, the contents of the Record Notice do not prove the tree cutting trespass was intentional.

3. DID THE RESPONDENT PRESENT SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT HIS ACTUAL DAMAGE CLAIM FOR THE APPELLANTS' TREE CUTTING?

As a result of the Default Judgment, the Appellants have admitted that they trespassed onto the Respondent's land. However, the Appellants have not admitted the amount of the resultant damages that should be awarded to the Respondent. The Court in Solley supports this position: "A defendant in default admits liability but not the damages as set forth in the prayer for relief. Renney v. Dobbs House, Inc., 274 S.E.2d 290, 292 (1981). The amount of damages in a default action must be proved by the preponderance of the evidence. *Id.*; see Jackson v. Midlands Human Res. Ctr., 374 S.E.2d 505, 507 (Ct.App.1988) ("A judgment for money damages must be warranted by the proof of the

party in whose favor it is rendered.)" Solley v. Navy Federal Credit Union, Inc., 723 S.E.2d 597, (S.C. Ct. of App. 2012)

Attorney Rauton admitted that "record notice" of the boundary would not necessarily identify the location of the boundary depicted by a 1934 Plat (*R. p. 29 Lines 9-25*). Attorney Rauton provided no evidence that the Appellants could have known the on-site actual location of the boundary that existed at time of the single meeting between the Appellants and Respondent. As set forth in Issue #2 above, even if the "actual, record notice" referred to in the last 2 lines of page 2 of the Order For Judgment, had been accurate, (which it was not), the Appellants had a valid basis for their right to cut the trees. The trespass associated with the tree cutting was not intentional.

As set forth in Issue 1 above, the tree cutting was not an "intentional trespass", therefore, South Carolina Code §16-11-580 does not apply. The Respondent stated the tripled value of the cut trees was \$750.90, (*R. p. 50 Lines 9-10*). This statement indicates the Respondent is utilizing South Carolina Code §16-11-615 in this case. This position was confirmed by Respondent's Counsel, who alleged the Appellants violated the statute, *R. p. 71 Lines 8-17*).

In the 2004 Case, Wimberly v. Barr, 597 S.E.2d 853 (S.C. App. 2004) the Court stated that if the owner of removed timber proceeds, under the statute his damages are capped at three times the value of the timber: "We find the statute does not create the exclusive remedy for all damages associated with the removal of timber. Section 16-11-615 reads: "In all criminal prosecutions for violation of the provisions of 16-11-520, 16-11-580, and 16-11-10, relating to cutting or destroying timber, the defendant may plead the payment of not to exceed exactly three times the fair market value of the timber

as determined by a registered forester and upon the plea being legally established and the payment of all costs accrued at the time of the plea he must be discharged from further penalty. If it is necessary to institute civil action to recover the fair market value of the timber, the State, in case of state lands, and the owner, in case of private lands, shall receive damages of not to exceed exactly three times the fair market value of the timber established by a registered forester if judgment is in favor of the State or the owner. S.C. Code Ann. §16-11-615 (2003)." Wimberly v. Barr

The Wimberly Court went on to hold: " Further, Wimberly specifically waived his action under the timber statute before the trial began and proceeded only on a claim for trespass. As in Stroud, the timber statute was not charged to the jury. Because we find the Legislature did not express an intent to make the timber statute the exclusive remedy to recover all types of damages associated with the loss of timber, we also find that we cannot bind a party to restrictions found therein if the case did not proceed under the statute."

The guidance issuing from the Wimberly Court is clear. The triple value code (South Carolina Code §16-11-615) cannot be used by the tree cutter to limit damages. However, on the other hand, if the tree owner elects to use the triple value code, the total damages are capped. The total damages include the sum of both actual and punitive damages.

The Respondent has elected to proceed under South Carolina Code §16-11-615. However, the Respondent has presented no evidence of the Appellants' violation of any criminal code. As the Appellants have presented in Issue #1 above, there is no applicable criminal code violation by the Appellants. Under the default judgment, the Appellants

admit that cutting of the trees was a trespass. However, the Respondent was unable to present any evidence that would extend the liability of the Appellants to a criminal code violation.

Another difficulty presented by the Respondent's decision to proceed under South Carolina Code §16-11-615, is that the Code is based upon the cut trees being sold. At the time of the Damages Hearing, the disputed trees had been cut, but not sold, *R. p. 67 Lines 18-19*). The Court gave no consideration to the option of the Respondent to mitigate his damage by selling the 30 cut trees, instead of just letting the trees lay and perhaps be an enhanced wild life environment. By relying on a statute that does not apply, the Respondent is left with a trespass that does not have damages in evidence.

4. DID THE COURT ERR BY AWARDING ACTUAL DAMAGES OF \$4,193.90 TO THE RESPONDENT?

The \$4,193.90 actual damages claim by the Respondent is comprised of seven components. The seven components were presented as a list by the Respondent; and the Respondent was instructed by his counsel to refrain from providing any explanation for the charges, *(R. p. 50 Lines 7-8)*. The Appellants requested the opportunity to cross-examine, *(R. p. 50 Line 21)*. However, the Court allowed the statement of damages without further applicable proceedings.

After the closing by counsel for the Respondent, the Appellants' Counsel attempted to present objections and to place discrepancies of the Respondent's evidence on record, *(R. p. 72 Line 6 to R. p. 74 Line 1)*. The Court's position was that due to the default judgment, no evidence could be presented, *(R. p. 74 Lines 2-7)*.

In the, Limehouse v. Hulsey Case, the Court stated: " Although the defendant is in default as to liability, the award of damages must be in keeping not only with the allegations of the complaint and the prayer for relief, but also with the proof that has been submitted. A judgment for money damages must be warranted by the proof of the party in whose favor it is rendered. (citations omitted). Moreover, trial judges and appellate courts conduct a review of the award to ensure the verdict is not excessive and is supported by the evidence." Limehouse v. Hulsey, 744 S.E.2d 566, (S.C. 2013)

Following are comments on Respondent's individual claim components, which prove a lack of adequate submitted evidence:

I) \$750.90 - Trebled value of timber cut.

As discussed in Issue 3 above, the Respondent trebled an evaluation of the cut trees' market value. There is no consideration of the Respondent not actually marketing the cut trees. Lacking a statute violation, there is no basis for treble value.

II) \$263.00 - Title Search by Attorney Rauton.

This is a legal fee expended by the Respondent in preparation for his trial. There is no justification in evidence to allow legal fees to be claimed.

III) \$150.00 - Cost of Filing Fee.

This is a legal expense of the lawsuit filed by the Respondent. There is no justification in evidence to allow legal costs to be claimed.

IV) \$10.00 - Payment for a Plat.

Respondent should have had his own copies of Plats. There is no justification in evidence for a Plat expense.

V) \$1,750.00 - Preparation of a new survey. The record shows that an attorney, hired by the Respondent, informed the Respondent that the deed and plat on record provided the correct description of the disputed boundary, (*R. p. 35 Lines 4-11*). The Respondent testified that his reason for commissioning a new survey was to re-establish the boundary and measure the acreage of the cut trees and of the area enclosed by the Appellants' fence, (*R. p. 61 Lines 3-17*). The most likely reason for the new survey was to prepare evidence for use in this case. There was no evidence presented to justify the cost of preparing for litigation. There was no evidence presented by the Respondent to indicate when the survey was prepared. The new survey could have been prepared either before or after the fence had been removed, (*R. p. 58 Line 17 to R. p. 59 Line 6*). The cut tree acreage was not used, the claim was based upon the number of trees cut. The fence claim was not based upon a survey, and an additional survey was not placed into evidence. The Respondent considered his documents were adequate when he first met with the Appellants, (*R. p. 43 Lines 16-19*).

The reasons presented by the Respondent for a new survey are all lacking a valid base. There is no justification in evidence for the new survey to be prepared, (*R. p. 61 Lines 3-17*).

VI) \$1,200.00 - Cost of Reforestation

The Respondent has chosen to proceed under South Carolina Code §16-11-615. There is no justification in evidence to now add an expense of planting new trees. The forester's report on the cut trees does not indicate white oak trees or chestnut trees were cut. The evidence does not provide any support for the type or cost of trees selected.

VII) \$70.00 - Fescue Grass Seed.

As in the above Cost VI for reforestation, the evidence provides no support for the cost of grass seed. Also, there is nothing in evidence to explain why the cutting of trees requires grass seeding.

With the lack of supporting evidence described above, either the claimed actual damages should be rejected or this case should be remanded for a new hearing of damages. All of the damages claimed by the Respondent relate to the tree cutting. The submitted evidence does not contain a component that quantifies damages that relate to the fence

5. DID THE COURT ERR IN ITS CALCULATION OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES?

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