THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In the Court of Appeals

---

APPEAL FROM SALUDA COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Letitia H. Verdin Circuit Court Judge

---

RECEIVED

DEC 03 2014

**Appellate Case No.: 2014-001588**

---

SC Court of Appeals

Carl Eugene Berry.....Respondent,

v.

Jess T. Reichardt and Thomas H. Reichardt .....Appellants.

---

**FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT**

---

Richard L. Whitt,  
S.C. Bar No.: 62895  
Jefferson D. Griffith, III,  
S.C. Bar No.: 2299  
**AUSTIN & ROGERS, P.A.**  
508 Hampton Street, Suite 300  
Columbia, South Carolina 29201  
(803) 251-7442  
**Attorneys for Respondent**

ORIGINAL

**Other Counsel of Record:**

Philip H. Woolhiser, Esquire

### **STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL**

- I. "DID THE COURT ERR IN HOLDING THAT THE APPELLANTS INTENTIONALLY TRESPASSED AT THE TIME THE TREES WERE CUT?"
- II. "DID THE COURT ERR IN GIVING EVIDENTIAL MERIT TO RESPONDENT'S CLAIM OF 'RECORD NOTICE'?"
- III. "DID THE RESPONDENT PRESENT SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT HIS ACTUAL DAMAGE CLAIM FOR THE APPELLANTS' TREE CUTTING?"
- IV. "DID THE COURT ERR BY AWARDING ACTUAL DAMAGES OF \$4,193.90 TO THE RESPONDENT?"
- V. "DID THE COURT ERR IN ITS CALCULATION OF PUNATIVE (*sic*) DAMAGES?"

## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Appellants Jess T. Reichardt and Thomas Reichardt (i) trespassed upon Respondent's property, on numerous occasions, (*see bullet points in "I", hereinbelow*), (ii) cut timber products located wholly on Respondent's property (*see bullet points in "I", hereinbelow*), and (iii) erected a fence on Respondent's property which prevented Respondent from utilizing almost ten acres of Respondent's property, (*see bullet points in "I", hereinbelow*).

After the first trespass by Appellants, Respondent personally met with both Appellants at Respondent's residence, (*R. p. 47, Lines 8-10*). Respondent presented the Appellants with documents and a Plat, which showed that Appellants were trespassing upon Respondent's property, thereby placing the Appellants on Actual Notice of Appellants' trespass, (*R. p. 47 Lines 8-10*). Appellants were also on Actual Notice by way of correspondence from a Surveyor that the Appellants themselves had hired, (*Statement of Mark Mills, R. p. 90*), (*R. p. 53 Lines 18-25*).

Appellants were also on Record Notice of the correct boundary line between Appellant Jess T. Reichardt's property and Respondent's property, as testified to by Respondent's witness Attorney Kathryn Rauton, during the Damages Hearing in this matter, (*R. p. 35 Lines 5-20*), (*R. p. 39 Lines 14-25*), (*Affidavit of Kathryn M. Rauton, Esq., R. pp. 83-88*).

Respondent commenced this matter by filing of a Complaint on May 14, 2013, which was amended and served on June 27, 2013. Respondent's Amended Complaint contained the following Causes of Action, 1). Theft of Forest Products; 2). Conversion; 3). Eviction; 4). Interference and Obstruction of Use of Property; 5). Trespass (*Quare Clausum Fregit*); 6). Civil Trespass to Land After Notice; 7). Entry Upon Land; and 8). Civil Conspiracy, (*Complaint (First Amended), R. pp. 18-30*).



### **STATEMENT OF THE FACTS (Cont.)**

Respondent's legal counsel and Appellants' legal counsel then appeared in a Hearing in Chambers before the Honorable Thomas A. Russo on July 2, 2013, (*Consent Order, R. pp. 3-6*). At that time Judge Russo indicated that he was issuing the Appellants a Rule to Vacate or Show Cause, as to why the Appellants should not be evicted from Respondent's property. Counsel for all parties then reached a Consent Order filed August 5, 2013, formalizing (i) Appellants eviction from Respondent's property (ii) Appellants agreement not to further trespass upon or enter upon Respondent's property for any reason and (iii) ordering Appellants to remove the fence located on Respondent's property (*Consent Order, R. pp. 3-4*).

Appellants failed to remove the fence consistent with the deadline set in Judge Russo's original Order. The fence was later removed by Appellants and after a Hearing, Judge Russo excused Appellants' non-performance.

Appellants' defaulted and the Trial Court signed a Notice of Entry of Default on August 28, 2013, and an Order for Judgment by Default on September 26, 2013, (*R. p. 7*), (*R. p. 12*).

Appellants' filed a Motion to Set Aside the Default on October 15, 2013, which was heard by the Honorable William H. Seals, Jr., on November 12, 2013, in the Saluda County Courthouse, with counsel present (*Motion, R. pp. 75-79*). Judge Seals denied Appellants' Motion to Set Aside Default by his Order filed November 20, 2013, (*Order Denying Defendants' Motion to Set Aside Default, R. pp. 8-10*).

Thereafter, a Damages Hearing was conducted in the Saluda County Courthouse on June 16, 2014, with all parties and counsel present. Respondent appeared, along with an attorney witness and both gave live testimony to the lower Court, along with evidentiary documents.

### **STATEMENT OF THE FACTS (Cont.)**

Respondent's witness Kathryn Rauton, Esquire testified that she conducted a Title Search on Appellant Jess T. Reichardt's property and Attorney Rauton's Affidavit was accepted into evidence at that time, (*R. p. 41 Lines. 12-19*), (*Affidavit of Kathryn M. Rauton, Esq., R. pp. 83-88*).

Attorney Rauton also testified that Appellants were on, "Record Notice" of Respondent's property boundary line, (*R. p. 35 Lines 5-20*), (*R. p. 39 Lines 14-25*), (*Affidavit of Kathryn M. Rauton, Esq., R. pp. 83-88*). Respondent provided evidence and gave testimony as to his actual damages incurred, (*R. p. 50 Lines 8-17*), (*R. p. 58 Line 9 – R. p. 67 Line 16*), and his request for punitive damages, (*R. p. 42 Line 3 – R. p. 52 Line 4*). The Trial Court accepted Respondent's comprehensive statement of Damages into evidence (*R. p. 50 Lines 18-25*). The Report of Thomas E. Mills, Investigator for the South Carolina Forestry Commission, dated May 11, 2012, was accepted into evidence, to show the value of the timber which was improperly cut by the Appellants, (*Report of Thomas E. Mills, R. p. 89*), (*R. p. 53, Lines 22-25*).

Thereafter, the Honorable Letitia H. Verdin filed her Order for Judgment on June 19, 2014, awarding Respondent actual damages of \$4,193.90 and punitive damages of \$20,969.00, for a total damage award to Respondent of \$25,163.00, (*Order, R. pp. 13-17*).

Thereafter, Appellants filed their Notice of Motion and Motion for Judgment Alteration, (*Motion, R. pp. 80-82*). The Trial Judge denied Appellants' Motion by way of her Order Denying Motion for Judgment Alteration, filed July 11, 2014, (*Order, R. p. 11*).

Thereafter, Appellants filed their Notice of Appeal and Appellants appeal followed.



## **ARGUMENT AS TO ALL OF APPELLANTS' ISSUES**

Because Appellants were found in Default, by Order issued September 26, 2013, (*Order, R. p. 12*), and Appellants' Motion to Set Aside Default was denied by Order filed on November 20, 2013, (*Order, R. pp. 8-10*), all the allegations of Respondent's Amended Complaint filed June 27, 2013, are deemed admitted<sup>1</sup> by Appellants. (*Amended Complaint, R. pp. 18-30*). Appellants ignore their Default posture in the Lower Court and Appellants throughout this Appeal and in each Exception, Appellants attempt to argue matters, which have been deemed admitted by the Appellants. Appellants' admissions are not subject to further argument by Appellants. "It is well settled that by suffering a default, the defaulting party is deemed to have admitted the truth of the plaintiff's allegations and to have conceded liability." Austin v. Specialty Transp. Services, Inc., 358 S.C. 298, 594 SE 2d 867 (S.C. Ct. of App. 2004). Furthermore, Appellants' arguments include numerous, *ipse dixit*, statements with no citation to South Carolina Case Law or Statute.

### **I. THE TRIAL JUDGE DID NOT ERR IN HOLDING THAT THE APPELLANTS INTENTIONALLY TRESPASSED AT THE TIME THE TREES WERE CUT, BECAUSE APPELLANTS WERE IN DEFAULT.**

Appellants attempt to argue in this Exception that their trespasses on the Respondent's property, were not intentional. Appellants' argued in their Initial Brief that, "...the Appellants had a valid basis for their right to cut the trees. The trespass associated with the tree cutting was not intentional", (*Appellants' Initial Brief pg. "9"*). The Appellants were in Default in the Lower Court and their actions were found to be intentional by the admitted allegations imputed to the Appellants by that default, as discussed at length below.

---

<sup>1</sup> Although, Appellants attempt to reargue these specific issues in Appellants' Initial Brief, Appellants are deemed to have admitted that, *inter alia*, (i) Appellants intentionally trespassed upon Respondent's property (*see bullet points in "I", herein*) (ii) Appellants improperly erected a fence upon Respondent's property, (*see bullet points in "I", herein*) (iii) Appellants violated Section 16-11-580 and Section 16-11-615, S.C. Code Ann., (1976, as amended) by Appellants' cutting of timber products on Respondent's property, (*see bullet points in "I", herein*) and (iv) Appellants had received actual Notice of the boundary location between Appellants and Respondent, (*Statement of Mark Mills, R. p. 90*) (*R. p. 48 Lines 15-18*).

The Appellants defaulted in the Lower Court and the following allegations of the Respondent are deemed admitted by Appellants. Namely,

- “[Appellant] Jess T. Reichardt and [Appellant] Thomas H. Reichardt have, on several occasions, without legal right or justification, (i) cut forest products (timber), belonging to [Respondent] (ii) **repeatedly, intentionally trespassed onto [Respondent’s] Property** (iii) **[Appellants] trespass is continuing and** (iv) as a direct result thereof, physically damaged the lands belonging to [Respondent].” (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “11” of Complaint (First Amended) R. p. 19*).
- **“[Appellants] have unlawfully invaded [Respondent’s] Property.”** (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “12” of Complaint (First Amended), R. p. 19*).
- “[Appellant] Jess T. Reichardt and [Appellant] Thomas H. Reichardt met and conspired together against the economic interests of [Respondent] Mr. Berry, intending as their primary purpose and object, to harm [Respondent] Mr. Berry. **[Appellants] acted in furtherance of that conspiracy, by construction of a fence on [Respondent’s] Property.**” (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “17” of Complaint (First Amended) R. p. 19*).
- “Shortly after the occasion of **[Appellants] first acts of intentional trespass onto [Respondent’s] Property**, [Respondent] personally met with both [Appellants], and reviewed [Respondent’s] Plats with both [Appellants] showing [Appellants] that they were trespassing onto [Respondent’s] Property.” (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “19” of Complaint (First Amended) R. p. 19*).
- **“[Appellants] actions thereafter were with actual notice of their intentional trespass...”** (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “23” of Complaint (First Amended), R. p. 20*).
- “On or about May 6, 2012, **[Appellants] did, without legal permission from [Respondent], intentionally come onto and trespass upon the Property of [Respondent]...**” (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “24” of Complaint (First Amended) R. p. 20*).
- **“[Appellants] were given oral notice of their intentional trespass, by the [Respondent], and [Appellants] were given written notice of their intentional trespass, by [Respondent’s] counsel...”** (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “25” of Complaint (First Amended), R. p. 20*).
- **[Appellant] Jess T. Reichardt, knowingly and willfully cut forest products located on [Respondent’s] Property, belonging to the [Respondent], without [Respondent’s] permission.** (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “27” of Complaint (First Amended) R. p. 21*).
- **[Appellant] Thomas H. Reichardt, knowingly and willfully cut forest products located on [Respondent’s] Property, belonging to the [Respondent], without [Respondent’s] permission.** (Emphasis not in original), (*Paragraph “78” of Complaint (First Amended) R. p. 25*).



Appellants' Intentional Acts Are Established.

Based on the foregoing, the Record is replete with admitted allegations that the Appellants intentionally trespassed upon Respondent's property, before, during the time and after the trees were cut on Respondent's property, (*see bullet points above*).

**II. THE TRIAL JUDGE DID NOT ERR IN GIVING EVIDENTIAL MERIT TO RESPONDENT'S CLAIM OF "RECORD NOTICE" BECAUSE OF THE EVIDENCE PROVIDED BY RESPONDENT AND RESPONDENT'S WITNESS' TESTIMONY.**

Record Notice.

The Trial Court did not err in giving evidentiary merit to Respondent's claim of "Record Notice", because Respondent's witness Kathryn Rauton, Esquire, appeared before the Lower Court during the Damages Hearing held in this matter on June 16, 2014, and testified that the Appellants were on Record Notice of the boundary line between Appellant Jess Reichardt's property and the Respondent's property, at the time of the Appellants' trespasses and interference (*R. p. 35 Lines 5-20*), (*R. p. 39 Lines 14-25*), (*Affidavit of Kathryn M. Rauton, Esq., R. pp. 83-88*). Attorney Rauton's testimony was supported by an Affidavit she completed concerning Appellant Jess T. Reichardt's property, including a Title Search and Attorney Rauton's Affidavit was entered into evidence before the Lower Court, (*Affidavit of Kathryn Rauton, Esq., R. pp. 83-88*). Appellants' counsel was given an opportunity to, and did, cross-examine Respondent's witness Attorney Rauton during the Damages Hearing, (*R. p. 36 Line 9 – R. p. 41 Line 2*).

Appellants' counsel argues, "Attorney Rauton [Respondent's witness at trial) provided no evidence that the Appellants could have known the on-site actual location of the boundary that existed at (*sic*) time of the single meeting between Appellants and Respondent." (*Appellants' Initial Brief* pg. "9"). Appellants' counsel's argument confuses, "Actual Notice", with "Record Notice". Attorney Rauton testified as to "Record Notice" and not "Actual Notice", therefore Appellants' counsel's argument is inapposite, (*R. p. 35 Lines 5-20*), (*R. p. 39 Lines 14-25*), (*Affidavit of Kathryn M. Rauton, Esq., R. pp. 83-88*).

The Trial Court's Finding of Record Notice in her Order, was properly supported by live witness testimony from Respondent's witness, Kathryn Rauton, Esquire, (*R. p. 35 Lines 5-20*), (*R. p. 39 Lines 14-25*), (*Affidavit of Kathryn M. Rauton, Esq., R. pp. 83-88*). "In an action at law, on appeal of a case tried without a jury, the findings of fact of the judge will not be disturbed upon appeal unless found to be without evidence which reasonable supports the judge's findings." Gowdy v. Gibson, 391 S.C. 374, 385, 706 S.E.2d 495, 501 (2011).

### **III. THE RESPONDENT PROVIDED SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT HIS ACTUAL DAMAGE CLAIM FOR THE APPELLANTS' TREE CUTTING BY HIS TESTIMONY IN COURT AND HIS EXHIBITS.**

The Respondent appeared and gave testimony, and provided documentary evidence to the Lower Court during the Damages Hearing held in this matter on June 16, 2014, concerning his damages as to the tree cutting, (*R. p. 43 Lines 7-19*), (*R. p. 46 Line 13- R. p. 47 Line 1*), (*R. p. 50 Lines 14-15*).

"Actual or compensatory damages include compensation for all injuries which are naturally the proximate result of the alleged wrongful conduct of the defendant. The basic measure of actual damages is the amount needed to compensate the plaintiff for the losses proximately caused by the defendant's wrong so that the plaintiff will be in the same position he would have been in if there had been no wrongful injury." (Internal citation omitted) *Austin v. Specialty Transp. Services, Inc.*, 358 S.C. 298, 594 SE 2d 867 (S.C. Ct. of App. 2004).



Appellants Argue That the Timber Statute Does Not Apply.

The Appellants also argue on page “9” of their Initial Brief that there was no violation of South Carolina Code Section 16-11-580, (1976, as amended). Because of their Default in the Lower Court, the violation of Section 16-11-580, S.C. Code Ann., (1976, as amended), and the violation of Section 16-11-615, S.C. Code Ann., (1976, as amended), the following allegations from the Respondent’s First Amended Complaint are deemed admitted.

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